History of Rawfolds Mill

Bold type Y 657 864 is the deed reference number and (No. 292) is the property
refernce number in the 1803 Survey of Liversedge.

According to Frank Peel’s “Spen Valley Past and Present” Rawfolds was mentioned in
1550, when Alice Rayner, the daughter of John Rayner and Alice Posthuna de Liversedge
married William Walker of Rawfolds, where he farmed seventy seven acres.

The first deed concerning Rawfolds is on the death of Thomas Walker in 1727, when the
first registration of property at Rawfolds was made. It concerned a house with barn and
garden built on Pighill (later called Dyehouse Close — the site of Rawfold’s Mill) built just
prior to March 1727 and occupied by Robert Kirkby (Kerby). Associated with the above
property were the four closes now divided into five closes called Long Close, the Paddock,
the Rawfold Ing, the Wood Close and the Pitt Close measuring 15 Acres in total and
formerly in the occupation of William Walker (the father of Thomas Walker) but now in the
occupation of Abraham Hemingway. (Y 657 864).

This had not changed in 1739 when Bouthier Walker, son of Thomas Walker registered the
properties along with the five closes called the Rafall Butt (N0s.972, 973) Thistle Rafall
(N0.971) , the Paddock (N0.968), the Long Rafall (N0.292) and Rafall Ing (N0.293) and the
two Round Rafalls (Nos. 967,969) and the Rafall Ing (No0.291) the latter being in the
occupation of Thomas Kitson and later Henry Birkby, the owner of Rawfold’s Mill.

(MM 236 317).
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In 1747 John Broadley, a dyer from Littletown bought the house, Pighill and the five closes.
Sometime previous Abraham Hemingway had died and the closes were now farmed by his
widow and their two sons Thomas and John Hemingway.(XX 326 406)

When John Broadley passed half the property to his son Benjamin, as both were dyers, the
property now had a dyehouse. The five fields were now registered as being in the occupation
of John Broadley. (AF 044 060)

In March 1774 John Broadley died and in 1776 and 1782 the property and five closes were
all in the ownership and occupation of Benjamin Broadley. (BZ 489 630 and CK 417 567).

In 1792 Henry Birkby bought the five Rafall Closes and the house built there by Thomas
Greenwood, (DK 207 275). In 1795 he mortgaged these (DR 435 450)

By 1796 Benjamin Broadley was dead and his property passed to his sisters. (DU 502 560)
and they split the property into two.

1) The Dyehouse property (No.211) and the close Pighill/Dyehouse Close (No. 210) along
with a newly erected barn with Granary adjoining (Ne.211), with rights to draw water from
the dam, were bought by the Brooke’s ,Obadiah and John, Squire Firth and Samuel Brown.
(EN 162 222, EN 225 303, EN 226 305).

2) The Mill at Rawfolds, previously built by Benjamin Broadley, was formerly a Scribbling
Mill with its Goit Weir, Mill Dam, Water Wheel and other appurtenances.These were sold to
Henry Birkby along with the adjoining land and orchard. He also bought the two closes near
to the Mill called Long Close and Brick Kiln Close. Water could be extracted from the weir
by the occupier of the Brooke’s property and there was a right of way past the Mill to their
property. (EN 315 424, EN 316 425).

In the Survey & Valuation of Liversedge of 1803 made by Jonathon Taylor
1) John Brooke was credited with owning Housing (33 Perches), (No. 211) and Dyehouse
Croft (1 Acre 2 Roods 12 Perches), (No.210)

2) Henry Birkby was credited with owning House, shops and garden with Mill (1 Rood 19
Perches) (No.213), along with Long Close (No. 289) and Brick Kiln Close (No. 295) totalling
(6 Acres 2 Roods 28 Perches) and Warmacre Ing (No.288) (1 Acre 1 Rood 17 Perches)

2a) William Ogden was credited with owning Housing, (22 Perches) (No.211), the orchard
(No. 212), the five Rafall Closes, the house built by Thomas Greenwood and Wood Close
(No0.294) and Long Pasture (N0.290) totalling (28 Acres 1 Rood 20 Perches). (This was
probably due to William Ogden possessing the Mortgage on the property) for in 1804 all
these properties reverted back to Henry Birkby , when he reapplied for a mortgage (EO 720
890).

The sale of the House (No. 213) referred to above was not registered until February 1804
and it described the property as Dwelling House, with one cottage, barn, ash house and
garden. It had previously been lived in by Benjamin Broadley, then by Benjamin Hepworth
but was now occupied by Henry Birkby. (EQ 393 458).In 1807 after the death of William
Ogden, his son John Ogden, transferred the remaining mortgage on the Mill back to Henry
Birkby. The description of the Mill was as above, as was the reference to drawing water from
the dam by a 1% inch diameter pipe to the Brooke property and the Right of Way. This
indenture transferred the orchard to Henry Birkby, but also referred to the building of a bridge
across the watercourse, which flowed near the mill. (FA 553 698).



In 1810 William Cartwright first became associated with the area, when he bought 425
square yards of land in the field called Broadroyd (No.288), which was opposite the
Rawfield House on the other side of the road.

In January 1812 Henry Birkby went Bankrupt and the properties had to be sold and
were described as:-

Two newly erected dwelling houses comprising besides cellars, four ground rooms, four
lodging rooms and a closet over the same late occupied by John Keighley and Richard
Kitson.

The barn,still referred to as newly erected, but now extended to include a cottage or
dwelling house in the occupation of Alexander Dixon.

One ground room building with a chamber over it previously occupied by John
McKinnell, plus the three pieces of ground and land in front of the road.

(Henry Birkby had built two new houses adjacent to the house of John Brooke, bought
part of the barn from him and extended it to include the other two properties) (FX 122
125)

A dwelling house comprising besides cellars, three ground rooms and chambers over
them previously occupied by Henry Birkby, with a piece of the garden and the yard

(22 Perches 10 yards)

Another dwelling containing two ground rooms now or late in the occupation of John
McKinnell, a cottage lately occupied by John Green, and a one up one down workshop
used by John Mc Kinnell. (FX 123 126)

A new close had been formed by combining parts of the two closes called Warmacre and
the Ing (1 Acre 2 Roods 39 Perches), with a Right of Way to other properties including
the upper part of the Ing and Wood Close.

In April/May 1812— The formation of the new close above was explained because
Henry Birkby had built a house in the middle of the close called Long Close/Ing (FR 501
537, FR 613 658)

In June — The Mill was no longer a Scribbling Mill but was now described as being used
for the shearing and the finishing of Woollen Cloths, although it was still powered by the
Water Wheel etc.

The Mill has been extended by the addition of a workshop contiguous to the existing mill
and the surrounding lands were fenced.

The right to extract water from the dam still existed, as did the Right of Way.

As in 1807 half the money to erect a bridge over the watercourse was also mentioned,
but this would be used only to erect a new bridge or to repair the existing bridge, which
must have been built during the last three years.

William Cartwright was granted a two year lease on the Mill and surrounding property.
The new field boundaries formed due to the building of the house were to be separated
by walls. (FS 686 739, FS 686 740)

In 1813 John Brooke was a distiller and owned two thirds of the barn and granary,
along with the dyehouse. He still owned Dyehouse Croft, which he farmed. He had also
obtained the house of Henry Birkby, in which he now lived, along with the yard and
garden. The other property containing the two up two down of John Mckinnell, the
cottage of John Green.plus the workshop of John McKinnell had also passed to him.
(FX 439 506).
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